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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The McPherson Opera House located at the northeast corner of
Main and Sutherland streets is a rectangular three-story building
with a basement. This large Eclectic style structure measures approx-
imately 130 feet long, 50 feet wide, and 40 feet high. The roof
is steeply pitched in a mansard effect for several feet and then
becomes a flat tar roof.

A main entrance to the opera house is on the south side within a
massive two-story stone arch. BAbove the arch is a carved stone
balustrade. At the third floor level is another stone and brick
arch, which in turn is capped by a large decorated stone gable. The
double doors at the first floor are flanked by granite columns within
the archway. The entrance way with its decorative stone work is one
of the most impressive features of the building.

The exterior walls are of red brick and limestone and are topped
by a stone cornice. A horizontal band of cut stone separates the
first and second floors and a protruding band of brick on the south
and stone on the west separates the second and third floors. Brick
pilasters vertically divide the west facade into three symmetrical
sections and the south facade into eight sections, some of them of
unequal size. Each brick pilaster terminates above the roof line
with a unique brick and stone pinnacle.

All windows are rectangular, although there may originally have
been some with curved sides in the entrance arch. Doors are likewise
rectangular and both doors and windows had wood frames. However,
many of the present window frames are of metal. All first floor
windows on the South facade have arched Stone lintels as well as
stone jambs. Second floor windows on the south have horizontal
stone lintels. Those on the west have a horizontal brick lintel
with a stone keystone. All third floor windows have an arched lintel
of a stone and brick combination. Stone sills are common to all
windows. Many of the window openings on the south side have been
bricked shut.

On the west front a flat—roofed porch overhangs the sidewalk
at the first floor level and shelters the entrances. BAn arched stone
design centered on the west facade encloses windows on the second and
third floors. A stone gable similar to the one on the south is located
over the arched design at the roof line. At the very bottom of the
gable raised stone letters spell out "OPERA HOUSE."

Visible alterations appear to be confined to the building's windows
with many on the south side bricked shut and the semicircular arches
of the third floor windows filled in with metal siding.

The interior has been modified; however, a theater or hall still
remains in the building although it has not been used for some time.
Part of the structure has been converted into apartments.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The McPherson Opera House built in 1889 was for many years an
important community center in McPherson. The first opera house in
town had been located on the second floor of the Bank of McPherson
building from 1880 to 1889, but as McPherson grew and prospered the
Opera House Company, with E. G. Clark as president, decided on March
25, 1888, to construct a new opera house. Work commenced the follow-
ing week with contracts being let to Ellison and Linn for the stone
basement and to W. G. Reynolds for the building. By June the stone
work was almost finished and the entire building was completed by
mid-January, 1889, at an approximate cost of $40,000. At the grand
opening on January 28, the Modoc Club of Topeka presented an opera
entitled "Chimes of Normandy." The building's 900 seats were filled
and box office receipts that evening amounted to $900.

From April, 1889, until December 6, 1894, the McPherson county
commissioners rented the building, except for the main hall, at an
annual fee of $1,400 for use as county offices until the new county
courthouse was completed. The opera house was used for public meet-
ings, political rallies and stage shows until late in 1925 when it
closed its doors. Several reasons were suggested for its closure:
the competition of movies was forcing the road shows to go to the
larger cities; some people were concerned about what they believed
to be the poor condition of the opera house building and its lack of
adequate fire escapes; and it simply was no longer profitable to
run an opera house.

An announcement was made in May, 1929, that the building would
re-open as a modern motion picture theater, the "Empire." The initial
response was overwhelming and 200 people had to be turned away on
opening night; May 8; however, the competition of a rival theater
proved to be too great, and the venture was closed in July, 1929.

It did not re-open as a theater again until the late 1930's when it
became the "Mac" theater. Later the opera house was completely re-
modeled into apartments and business establishments. In 1971 the
building housed an antique shop and a jewelry store.

The McPherson Opera House had an important role in the develop-
ment of the McPherson community. It was, in effect, the county court-
house for five years while the present courthouse was under construc-—
tion. For better than 30 years it hosted many of McPherson's cultural
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